1 2	CALL TO ORDER
3	ROLL CALL
4	
5	Present: Steve Bellantone, Member; Ronald Ledgett, Member; Russell White, Member;
6	Mark Alesse, Member; Karen Kalmar, Vice Chair, and Dutch Dunkelberger, Chair
7	
8	Absent: Drew Fitch, Member
9	
10	Staff: Jamie Steffen, Town Planner; Adam Causey, Director of Planning and
11	Development
12	
13	Advisory: Earldean Wells, Conservation Commission
14	DI EDGE OF ALL ECIANCE
15	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
16 17	APPROVAL OF MINUTES – January 24, 2019
18	ATT NOVAL OF MINOTES — January 24, 2013
19	Chair Dunkelberger stated that these would need to be postponed until the next meeting
20	due to the lack of members present that were in attendance at that meeting.
21	
22	APPROVAL OF SITE WALK MINUTES – February 28, 2019
23	
24	Vice Chair Kalmar moved to accept the site walk minutes of February 28, 2019.
25	Mr. Ledgett stated that he wanted it noted that most of the site was inaccessible
26	due to snow and ice conditions. Vice Chair Kalmar moved to approve the
27	minutes as amended. Seconded by Mr. Ledgett.
28	The motion corried 6.0.0
29 30	The motion carried 6-0-0.
31	The Chair opened the public comment section. There being none, the Chair closed the
32	public comment section.
33	pasie comment coolem
34	PUBLIC HEARING
35	
36	ITEM 1 – 50 Chauncey Creek Road – Shoreland Development Plan Review.
37	Action: Accept or deny application. Approve or deny plan. Owners and applicants,
38	Thomas and Michele Jordan request consideration to reconstruct and expand a
39	nonconforming single family dwelling on a 7,800 +/- square foot parcel located at 50

# TOWN OF KITTERY, Maine PLANNING BOARD MEETING

UNAPPROVED March 14, 2019

**Council Chambers** 

- 40 Chauncey Creek Road (Tax Map 44 Lot 59) in the Residential Kittery Point Village (R-
- KPV), Shoreland Overlay (OZ-SL-250') and Resource Protection (OZ-RP) zones. Agent
- Tom Emerson, studioB-E.

Mr. Emerson gave a brief overview of the proposal. He noted that the owners would be taking the proposed shed out of the application.

No members of the public spoke to the application.

Mr. Ledgett questioned the deck structure in relation to the 25' setback from the Highest Annual Tide (HAT) line. He asked for more details to be shown on the plan regarding the portion of the deck structure within the 25' setback. There was discussion amongst the Board and the Mr. Emerson regarding this information. It was decided that the final plan would be revised to the existing dimensions of the house that are within 25' of the HAT must be shown on the plan as well as any changes to the deck corner post or foundation location.

 Mr. White moved to accept the Shoreland Development Plan application as complete and approve the Shoreland Development Plan application dated November 20, 2018, as revised from owners / applicants, Thomas and Michelle Jordan, to reconstruct a nonconforming single family dwelling on a 7,800 +- square foot parcel located at 50 Chauncey Creek Road (Tax map 44 Lot 59) in the Residential Kittery Point Village (R-KPV), shoreland Overlay (OZ-SL-250') and Resource Protection (OZ-RP) zones. Seconded by Mr. Ledgett.

Mr. Ledgett asked the Planner about the guard railings for the 2<sup>nd</sup> floor roof deck relative to the height definition. He asked if the Town Attorney had weighed in on the matter. Mr. Causey explained that it was staff's interpretation that the railings do not count toward the height of the structure. They would be considered an appurtenance with no associated floor area.

The motion carried 6-0-0.

FINDINGS OF FACT

75 The Planning Board made the following factual findings and conclusions:

Section 16.3.2.17.D Shoreland Overlay Zone

(1)(d). The total footprint of areas devegetated for structures, parking lots and other
impervious surfaces, must not exceed twenty (20) percent of the lot area, including
existing development except in the following zones

80 81 82

83

84

85

78 79

> **Finding:** The existing devegetated and impervious surfaces area is 26.5% of the lot area. The applicant will remove some impervious surfaces and revegetate to lower the overall devegetated area at 25.3%.

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

86 87

# Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

88 89

90

#### **Section 16.7.3.1 Prohibitions and Allowances**

A. Except as otherwise provided in this Article, a nonconforming condition must not be permitted to become more nonconforming.

91 92 93

94

95

- **Finding:** This is an existing, nonconforming single family dwelling structure relative to the 100 foot setback from the water and side yard setbacks. A dwelling is a special exception in the Shoreland Overlay Zone.
- The proposed development does not increase the nonconformity as permitted in 96 16.7.3.3.B Nonconforming structure repair and/or expansion. 97

98 99

100

- The proposed development does not increase the nonconformity as permitted in 16.7.3.3.B. Nonconforming structure repair and/or expansion.
- **Conclusion**: This standard appears to be met. 101

102 103

#### Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

104 105

106

#### **Section 16.7.3.3 Nonconforming Structures**

# 16.7.3.3.B Nonconforming structure repair and/or expansion

In cases where the structure is located in the Shoreland or Resource Protection Overlay 107 Zone, the repair and/or expansion must be approved by the Planning Board. See 108 109 16.6.6.A.2 reference below.

- **Finding:** The proposed development increases the nonconformity as permitted in 111
- 16.7.3.3.B. (1) [4] [a] Nonconforming structure repair and/or expansion. The expansion 112
- of the footprint of the structure will not exceed 1,000 square feet in size. The height of 113
- the structure will not be greater than the height of the existing structure. 114

117	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining
118	
119	Section 16.6.6. Basis for Decision
120	<b>16.6.6.A.2</b> In hearing appeals/requests under this Section, the Board of Appeals [note:
121	Planning Board is also subject to this section per 16.7.3.3.B.(1) above] must use the
122	following criteria as the basis of a decision:
123	1. Proposed use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of adjacent properties
124	or of properties in adjacent use zones;
125	2. Use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of permitted or legally
126	established uses in the zone wherein the proposed use is to be located, or of permitted
127	or legally established uses in adjacent use zones;
128	3. Safety, the health, and the welfare of the Town will not be adversely affected by the
129	proposed use or its location; and
130	4. Use will be in harmony with and promote the general purposes and intent of this
131	Code.
132	
133	Finding: The proposed development does not pose a concern.
134	<u>Conclusion</u> : The requirement appears to be met.
135	
136	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining
137	Ocation 40 40 40 0 Procedure for Administrative Powells
138	Section 16.10.10.2 Procedure for Administering Permits
139	D. An application will be approved or approved with conditions if the reviewing authority
140	makes a positive finding based on the information presented. It must be demonstrated
141	the proposed use will:
142	Finding. The Planning Roard made a positive finding on Criteria 1 10 with all of the
143	<b>Finding:</b> The Planning Board made a positive finding on Criteria 1-10 with all of the
144	criteria appearing to be met.
145	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining
146 147	vote of o in lavor o against o abstaining
148	Based on the foregoing Findings, the Planning Board finds the applicant has satisfied
149	each of the review standards for approval and, therefore, the Planning Board approves
150	the Shoreland Development Plan subject to any conditions or waivers, as follows:
151	the offerential bevelopment i fair subject to any conditions of waivers, as follows.
152	Waivers: None
153	
154	Conditions of Approval (to be included on final plan to be recorded):
155	

158

159

160 161

162

163

164 165

166

167

168 169

170

171

172173174

175176

177178

179

180

181 182

183 184

185 186 187

192

193

194

- 1. No changes, erasures, modifications or revisions may be made to any Planning Board approved final plan. (Title 16.10.9.1.2).
  - 2. Applicant/contractor will follow Maine DEP *Best Management Practices* for all work associated with site and building construction to ensure adequate erosion control and slope stabilization.
  - 3. Prior to the commencement of grading and/or construction within a building envelope, as shown on the Plan, the owner and/or developer must stake all corners of the envelope. These markers must remain in place until the Code Enforcement Officer determines construction is completed and there is no danger of damage to areas that are, per Planning Board approval, to remain undisturbed.
  - 4. All Notices to Applicant contained herein (Findings of Fact dated 3/14/19).
  - 5. The existing dimensions of the portions of the house that are within 25' of the Highest Annual Tide (HAT) must be shown on the plan as well as any changes to the deck corner post or foundation location.
  - 6. Remove the proposed 80 sf shed from the plan and revise the devegetated area calculations accordingly.

The Planning Board authorizes the Planning Board Chair or Vice Chair to sign the Final Plan and the Findings of Fact upon confirmation of compliance with any conditions of approval.

Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining

Per Title 16.6.2.A – An aggrieved party with legal standing may appeal a final decision of the Planning Board to the York County Superior Court in accordance with Maine Rules of Civil Procedures Section 80B, within forty-five (45) days from the date the decision by the Planning Board was rendered.

#### **OLD BUSINESS**

#### ITEM 2 - 230 U.S. Route 1 – Preliminary Site Plan Review

Action: Approve or deny preliminary site plan Owner/Applicant Green Brook, LLC requests consideration to develop a food truck pod on a 1.04 acre lot located at 230 U.S. Route 1 (Tax Map 22 Lot 14) in the Commercial (C-1) Zone. Agent is Barbara Jenny.

Barbara Jenny, owner/applicant, gave a brief overview of the final plan changes from the previous reviews by the Board. She discussed the proposed landscaping additions

to the plans. She then discussed the waiver granted from MDOT to put the trough planters in the ROW for traffic control but explained that MDOT has dictated changes to the proposed traffic movement plan for the site. She indicated that she was amenable to doing what the State has asked but she would prefer to keep the traffic flow as proposed.

The Board and the Planner discussed MDOT's position and how to handle the approval of the traffic movement plan. The Board expressed its support of the plan as presented by the applicant and expressed concerns with the changes called for by MDOT. Mr. Causey informed the Board that he would be meeting with MDOT on another project involving Route 1 and he would seek clarity on the letter regarding the traffic flow changes. He advised that the Board should approve the plan they are comfortable with and if MDOT objects then the applicant may need to come back for an amended approval.

Ms. Wells stated that she would like to see the note landscaping addendum which calls for additional pines to be planted behind the porta-potties, if necessary, to fill out the existing screening added as a plan condition.

- Mr. White moved to approve the final site plan application dated 9/25/18, revised 2/15/19 from owner / applicant Green Brook, LLC to develop a food truck pod on a 1.04 acre lot located at 230 U.S. Route 1 (Tax Map 22 Lot 14) in the Commercial (C-1) Zone. Mr. Ledgett seconded the motion.
- Vice Chair Kalmar noted her changes / corrections to the Findings of Fact.
- 219 The motion carried 6-0-0.

#### FINDINGS OF FACT

The Planning Board made the following factual findings and conclusions:

#### A. Development Conforms to Local Ordinances

**Finding:** The proposed development conforms to one of the primary objectives of the comprehensive plan for economic development as it creates a creative and viable redevelopment of an underutilized commercial parcel on the Rt. 1 Bypass. The site plan and subdivision plans comply with the provisions of Title 16.

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

TO THE TELL
PLANNING BOARD
<b>Council Chambers</b>

233	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining
234	
235	B. Freshwater Wetlands Identified.
236	Finding: There are no wetlands present.
237	
238	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.
239	
240	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining
241	
242	C. River, Stream or Brook Identified.
243	Finding: None present.
244	
245	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.
246	W
247	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining
248	D. Water Complex Coefficient
249	D. Water Supply Sufficient.
250	E. Municipal Water Supply Available
251	Finding: The food trucks will utilize private water supplies.
252	
253 254	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.
254	Conclusion. This standard appears to be met.
255 256	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining
250 257	vote of <u>o</u> in lavor <u>o</u> against <u>o</u> abstaining
258	F. Sewage Disposal Adequate.
259	Finding: The food trucks will utilize private sewage disposal.
260	i manigi ino toda tracke viii atiii20 private devrage alepedati.
261	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.
262	
263	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining
264	3 3
265	G. Municipal Solid Waste Disposal Available
266	Finding: Solid waste disposal will be through private means. The proposed
267	development will not burden the Town's facility.
268	
269	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.
270	
271	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining

272						
273	H. Water Body Quality and Shoreline Protected.					
274	Finding: This standard is not applicable.					
275						
276	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
277						
278	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
279						
280	I. Groundwater Protected.					
281	Finding: This standard is not applicable.					
282						
283	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
284						
285	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
286						
287	J. Flood Areas Identified and Development Conditioned.					
288	Finding: There is no proposed development located within a flood prone area.					
289						
290	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
291						
292	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
293						
294	K. Stormwater Managed.					
295	<b>Finding:</b> No changes will be necessary to the existing stormwater management system					
296	for this site.					
297						
298	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
299						
300	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
301	L. Erosion Controlled.					
302	Finding: This standard is not applicable.					
303						
304	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
305	Valor of C in force C analyst C abotaining					
306	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
307	M. Troffic Monored					
308	M. Traffic Managed.					
309	<b>Finding:</b> The site plan clearly indicates on-site traffic flow. Direction of traffic through					

the parking lot is shown as one-way. Traffic off the Bypass and from the traffic circle via

311	Route 1 will be able to use two entrances, which are two-way. Staff concerns about the					
312	lack of protection of the pedestrian space from cars entering via the north entrance have					
313	been addressed through the placement of additional trough planters in the MDOT ROW,					
314	painted divided lane and stop lines and signage indicating "stop" and "No Left Turn". At					
315	the south entrance, there will also be striping and signage to control flow into and out of					
316	the site. The applicant has provided MDOT with a traffic flow plan for the site.					
317						
318	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
319						
320	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
321						
322	N. Water and Air Pollution Minimized.					
323	Finding:					
3 <b>21</b> 4	The proposed development is located outside of a floodplain.					
3 <b>2</b> 5	2-4. The proposed development will be serviced by Town sewer.					
3 <b>2</b> 6	5. The proposed development will adhere to all applicable State regulations.					
3247.	6. Not applicable to the proposed development.					
328	Conclusion. This standard appropriate he meet					
329	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
330	Note of C in force 0 against 0 aboteining					
331	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
332	O Acathotic Cultural and Natural Values Dretected					
333	O. Aesthetic, Cultural and Natural Values Protected.					
334	<b>Finding:</b> The property does not include any significant aesthetic, cultural or natural					
335	values that require protection.					
336	Conclusion. This standard appears to be mat					
337	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
338	Vata of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abotaining					
339	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
340	B. Dovolonor Financially and Tochnically Canable					
341	P. Developer Financially and Technically Capable.					
342	<b>Finding:</b> The site contains existing commercial development that is viable and no major					
343	investment in the property is necessary to establish the food truck pod.					
344	Conclusion. This standard appears to be mot					
345	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
346	Vata of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abotaining					
347	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
348	Posed on the foregoing Findings, the Dianning Poord finds the applicant has satisfied					
349 350	Based on the foregoing Findings, the Planning Board finds the applicant has satisfied each of the review standards for approval and, therefore, the Planning Board hereby					
45H	each or the review Standards for additional and Therefore, the Planning Board Northly					

grants final approval, including approval for a special exception use request for the development at the above referenced property, including any waivers granted or conditions as noted.

354 355

- Waivers:
- 356 1) None.

#### Conditions of Approval (to be depicted on the final site plan):

357358359

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

- 1. Planter troughs to be placed in the MDOT ROW between the island and the pedestrian area to the right of the exit lane.
- 2. No changes, erasures, modifications, or revisions may be made to the approved plan, and no further land division or additional dwelling units may be established without Planning Board-approval.
- All <u>Notices to Applicant</u> contained in the Findings of Fact (dated: March 14, 2019).
- 4. Additional pines will be planted, if necessary, behind the porta-potties to fill out the existing screen of three (3) pines between the neighboring senior housing.

367 368 369

<u>Conditions of Approval</u> (NOT to be depicted on the final plan):

370371

372

373374

5. Incorporate any plan revisions on the final plan as recommended by Staff, Planning Board, or Peer Review Engineer, and submit for Staff review prior to presentation of final Mylar. The amended subdivision plan must be submitted to Staff for review prior to recording with the York County Registry of Deeds within 90-days of approval.

375376

377

378379

The Planning Board authorizes the Planning Board Chair or Vice Chair to sign the Final Plan and the Findings of Fact upon confirmation of compliance with any conditions of approval.

380 381

# Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

382 383

384

385

Per Title 16.6.2.A – An aggrieved party with legal standing may appeal a final decision of the Planning Board to the York County Superior Court in accordance with Maine Rules of Civil Procedures Section 80B, within forty-five (45) days from the date the decision by the Planning Board was rendered.

386 387 388

#### ITEM 3 - Huntington Run - Cluster Subdivision Final Plan Review

•	Cann	cil	Cha	mbers
٧	COUL	(11)	v III	

- Action: Accept and deny application. Approve, approve with conditions, disapprove,
- 390 <u>postpone action or continue plan.</u> Owner, Landmark Properties, LTD and Kingsbury and
- Veronica Bragdon, and applicant, Chinburg Builders, Inc., request consideration of a 20-
- lot cluster subdivision on 86.6 +/- acres located on Betty Welch Road (Tax Map 66 Lots
- 2A, 8 & 8A) in the Residential Rural Zone (R-RL) and a portion located in the Shoreland
- Overlay (SH-250'-OZ) Zone. Agent is Jeff Clifford, P.E., Altus Engineering.

395

The Planner noted a couple of corrections to the application wording.

397 398

- Jeff Clifford, Altus Engineering, gave an update on where the project was in the review process. He discussed the waiver requests, specifically the waiver for Street Width
- Design: d. Paved Shoulder. He highlighted the key points of his waiver justification
- letter to the Board dated March 6, 2019.

402

- Vice Chair Kalmar discussed the waiver request and commented that the Board needed
- 404 to determine if there were special circumstances that distinguishes this project from
- others. She commented on the harm aspect as part of the waiver conditions and asked
- for more detail relative to the waive justification. Mr. White discussed road widths and
- vehicle speed. He stated he agreed with the analysis presented for reducing the
- 408 pavement width.

There was more discussion amongst the Board and Mr. Clifford regarding road widths

and the applicant making a case for the Board granting the waivers.

411

- 412 Mr. White moved to approve a waiver from Section 16.10.5.2.B.2 Plan Size.
- Drawing scale: 1"=100' for Existing Conditions and Topographic Plans and
- Subdivision Plans; 1"=150' for Soils Plan. The smaller scale coincides with the
- Lot Plans, while having a scale that is easily readable. Seconded by Vice Chair
- 416 Kalmar. The motion carried 6-0-0.

- 418 Mr. White moved to approve a waiver from Section 16.9.3.2 Wetlands Boundaries.
- Jurisdictional wetlands were not delineated on approximately 22 acres of the
- northern portion of the parcel since additional developable area was not needed
- for the density calculation and the area will be protected open space. As agreed
- to at the August 24, 2017 Planning Board meeting, a Natural Resource
- 423 Assessment was prepared for the 22 acres by Gove Environmental in lieu of
- flagging and surveying the wetlands. Seconded by Vice Chair Kalmar. The
- 425 motion carried 6-0-0.
- 426 Mr. White moved to approve a waiver from Section 16.8.4.4 and Table 1 Class III
- Private Streets Standard. Street Width Design: d. Paved Shoulder: To maintain

the rural character of the area and reduce impervious surfaces, the applicant proposes to construct 1' wide paved and 3' wide gravel shoulders on each side of the paved 20' travelled way in lieu of the Minor Streets standard of 2' and 8' paved shoulders. Seconded by Chair Dunkelberger.

Vice Chair Kalmar further expressed her concerns with granting a waiver from this standard without more detail provided relative to the harm issue and how much difference to the wetlands a reduction in pavement width would make. Mr. Clifford responded in general terms. Mr. White asked the Conservation Commission for their input on the matter. Ms. Wells responded that they had a number of problems with the proposed development. The wetlands impact being one of them. She commented though that they hadn't looked specifically at the road standards and what a reduction in pavement would do for their concerns.

Chair Dunkelberger shared his concerns about pedestrian safety, specifically school kids walking to and from the bus stop, with a reduction in pavement.

The motion was defeated 1-4-1. Waiver was denied.

Mr. White moved to approve a waiver from Section 16.8.4.4 and Table 1 Class III Private Streets Standard. Street Gradients: b. Side Slope (horiz. to vert.). To minimize wetland impact, the applicant proposes to construct 2:1 road side slopes in lieu of 3:1 standard. Seconded by Vice Chair Kalmar.

The Board and Mr. Clifford discussed the details of this request. It was determined that the waiver was justified based upon the minimizing the wetlands impact.

#### The motion carried 6-0-0.

Ms. Wells shared her other concerns with the proposed maintenance of the wastewater systems and the community wastewater disposal fields. She indicated that the Conservation Commission would like to see more frequent inspections of the wastewater systems. She suggested monthly inspections with revisions to the HOA documents and subdivision plan to reflect that. Vice Chair Kalmar suggest two inspections per year by a professional inspector – beginning of May and the end of September and monthly checks by the Homeowners Association heads. The applicant agreed to the requests and would revise the documents and plans accordingly.

Council	Cham	bers
Council	CHAIL	

466	Mr. Ledgett and Mr. Clifford had a brief discussion about flows and the monitoring of					
467	those.					
468						
469	Mr. White moved to approve the final cluster subdivision plan dated January 24,					
470	2019 and wetlands alteration application dated June 22, 2017, as revised on					
471	February 14, 2019 from owner / applicant Chinburg Development, LLC for a 20-lot					
472	cluster subdivision located on Betty Welch Road (Tax Map 66 Lots 2A, 8 & 8A) in					
473	the Residential Rural and Shoreland Overlay Zones without the waiver for the					
474	Street Width Design: d. Paved Shoulder. Seconded by Vice Chair Kalmar.					
475						
476	Vice Chair Kalmar commented regarding the open space requirement and requested					
477	that staff makes sure that those were covered in the approval.					
478						
479	The motion carried 6-0-0.					
480						
481	Mr. White moved to accept and approve a Street Naming Application from					
482	Chinburg Development, LLC, dated February 6, 2019 to name a new private road					
483	off of Betty Welch Road (Map 66, lots 2A, 8, 8A), Huntington Way. Seconded by					
484	Mr. Ledgett. The motion carried 6-0-0.					
485	FINDINGS OF FACT					
486	FINDINGS OF FACT					
487	The Planning Reard made the following factual findings and conclusions:					
488 489	The Planning Board made the following factual findings and conclusions:					
490	A. Development Conforms to Local Ordinances					
491	<b>Finding:</b> The subdivision is a permitted use in the Residential – Rural (R-RL) zone and					
492	does not require any variances as proposed.					
493						
494	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
495						
496	Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining					
497						
498	B. Freshwater Wetlands Identified.					
499	Finding: The wetlands have been delineated by Gove Environmental and depicted on					
500	the subdivision plans.					
501						
502	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
503						
504	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					

505

C. River, Stream or Brook Identified.

**Finding:** A small intermittent stream originating at a culvert under Betty Welch Road and leaving the property near the intersection of the water main and property line has been identified on the site.

509 510 511

506

507

508

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

512

Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

513514515

516

517 518

519

520

- D. Water Supply Sufficient.
- E. Municipal Water Supply Available

**Finding:** When completed, the proposed project is anticipated to use 5,400 gallons of water per day. The applicant has submitted letters from the Kittery Water District, dated July 25, 2017 and February 14, 2019, indicating that it will be capable of servicing this project and that the design of the water infrastructure and materials meets their specifications.

521522523

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

524 525

#### Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

526 527

528

529

530 531 F. Sewage Disposal Adequate.

**Finding:** Wastewater will be disposed of by an engineered system that consists of a septic tank and advanced treatment system for each lot which will connect to community wastewater disposal fields. MDEP has found that the proposed wastewater disposal system will be built on suitable soil types and that Maine's Drinking Water Standard for nitrates will be met at the project's property lines.

532533534

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

535536

#### Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

537538

539

G. Municipal Solid Waste Disposal Available

**Finding:** The proposed development will not burden the Town Resource Recovery Facility.

540541542

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

544	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
545						
546	H. Water Body Quality and Shoreline Protected.					
547	Finding: The proposed development is partially located within the Shoreland Water					
548	Body / Wetland Protection Overlay Zone. All proposed development in the regulated					
549 550	zone is outside of the required 100-foot setback and will not adversely affect the water quality of the regulated wetland.					
551	quality of the regulated wetland.					
552	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
553	Constant Time Standard appears to be met.					
554	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
555	3					
556	I. Groundwater Protected.					
557	Finding: MDEP has found that the proposed project will not unreasonably deplete					
558	groundwater resources. The Department further found that the proposed project will not					
559	have an unreasonable adverse effect on groundwater quality or quantity.					
560						
561	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
562						
563	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
564	I Flood Aveca Identified and Development Canditioned					
565	J. Flood Areas Identified and Development Conditioned.					
566 567	<b>Finding:</b> Flood Insurance Rate maps (FIRM) and Town Maps indicate that the only designated floodplain area on the property is located well away from the area of					
568	development.					
569	development.					
570	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
571						
572	Vote of <u>6</u> in favor <u>0</u> against <u>0</u> abstaining					
573						
574	K. Stormwater Managed.					
575	Finding: MDEP has found that the applicant has made adequate provision to ensure					
576	that the proposed project will meet the following: Basic Standards contained in Chapter					
577	500 (4) (B); General Standards contained in Chapter 500 (4) (C), and the Flooding					
578	Standard contained in Chapter 500 (4) (F).					
579						
580	Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.					
581						

Vote of  $\underline{6}$  in favor  $\underline{0}$  against  $\underline{0}$  abstaining

# L. Erosion Controlled.

**Finding:** The proposed project meets the standard for erosion and sedimentation control in 38 M.R.S Section 420-C provided that sewer grit and sediment are disposed of in compliance with Maine Solid Waste Management rules. The installation of stormwater components will be overseen by CMA Engineers and documented according to State rules. Executed deed restrictions for the designated stormwater buffers will be recorded and marked on the ground.

589 590 591

583

584

585

586

587 588

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

592593

#### Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

594 595

596

597

598

#### M. Traffic Managed.

**Finding:** With consideration of the waivers granted below, the proposed development conforms to Title 16.8.9 Parking, Loading and Traffic and will provide for adequate traffic circulation. CMA Engineers has indicated that the site distances on Betty Welch Road are acceptable.

599 600 601

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

602 603

# Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

604 605

606

#### N. Water and Air Pollution Minimized.

The proposed development will not result in undue water or air pollution. In making this determination, the following must be considered:

607 608 609

- 1. Elevation of the land above sea level and its relation to the floodplains;
- Nature of soils and sub-soils and their ability to adequately support waste disposal:
- 512 3. Slope of the land and its effect on effluents;
- 4. Availability of streams for disposal of effluents;
- 5. Applicable state and local health and water resource rules and regulations; and
  - 6. Safe transportation, disposal and storage of hazardous materials.

616617618

**Finding**: 1 thru 6 have been addressed previously approval by MDEP of Site Location of Development Permit application or are not applicable to the proposed project.

620

621

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

### Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

#### O. Aesthetic, Cultural and Natural Values Protected.

**Finding:** The applicant has made adequate provision for the protection of wildlife and fisheries. MDEP had found that the proposed development will not have an adverse effect on the scenic character of the area and preservation of unusual natural areas.

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

# Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

# P. Developer Financially and Technically Capable.

**Finding:** The developer has been involved with many large scale construction projects through completion. The developer will provide an inspection escrow in an amount suitable to cover the costs of on-site inspection by the Peer Review Engineer to ensure the proposed development is constructed according to the approved plan.

**Conclusion:** This standard appears to be met.

# Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

Based on the foregoing Findings, the Planning Board finds the applicant has satisfied each of the review standards for approval and, therefore, the Planning Board hereby grants final approval, including approval for a special exception use request for the development at the above referenced property, including any waivers granted or conditions as noted.

#### Waivers:

- 1. Section 16.8.4.13. Sidewalks. No sidewalk is proposed. A walking and biking direction sign shall be provided.
- 2. Section 16.10.5.2.B.2 Plan Size. Drawing scale: 1"=100' for Existing Conditions and Topographic Plans and Subdivision Plans; 1"=150' for Soils Plan. The smaller scale coincides with the Lot Plans, while having a scale that is easily readable.

- 3. Section 16.9.3.2 Wetlands Boundaries. Jurisdictional wetlands were not delineated on approximately 22 acres of the northern portion of the parcel since additional developable area was not needed for the density calculation and the area will be protected open space. As agreed to at the August 24, 2017 Planning Board meeting, a Natural Resource Assessment was prepared for the 22 acres by Gove Environmental in lieu of flagging and surveying the wetlands.
- 4. Section 16.8.4.4 and Table 1 Class III Private Streets Standard. Street Gradients:
  b. Side Slope (horizontal. to vertical). To minimize wetland impact, the applicant proposes to construct 2:1 road side slopes in lieu of 3:1 standard.

# <u>Conditions of Approval</u> (to be included as notes on the final plan in addition to the existing notes):

- 1. No changes, erasures, modifications or revisions may be made to any Planning Board approved final plan. (Title 16.10.9.1.2)
- 2. Applicant/contractor will follow Maine DEP Best Management Practices for all work associated with site and building construction to ensure adequate erosion control and slope stabilization.
- 3. Prior to the commencement of grading and/or construction within a building envelope, as shown on the Plan, the owner and/or developer must stake all corners of the envelope. These markers must remain in place until the Code Enforcement Officer determines construction is completed and there is no danger of damage to areas that are, per Planning Board approval, to remain undisturbed.
- 4. All Notices to Applicant contained in the Findings of Fact (dated: 03/14/2019).

# <u>Conditions of Approval (Not to be included as notes on the final plan):</u>

- 5. <u>Incorporate any plan revisions on the final plan as recommended by Staff, Planning Board, or Peer Review Engineer, and submit for Staff review prior to presentation of final Mylar.</u>
- 6. The Home Owners Association (HOA) document must be reviewed and found satisfactory by the Shoreland Resource Officer and the Town Attorney prior to the final Mylar being signed by the Chair.
- 7. <u>Provide the additional documents and/or responses to all CMA comments prior to presentation of final Mylar.</u>

Ω	Ensure that the open	space requirements per	Section	16 8 11 7	are eatisfied
ο.	Ensure that the open	Space requirements per	Section	10.0.11.7	are sausileu.

The Planning Board authorizes the Planning Board Chair or Vice Chair to sign the Final Plan and the Findings of Fact upon confirmation of compliance with any conditions of approval.

655 656 657

653

654

#### Vote of 6 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining

658 659

660

661

Per Title 16.6.2.A – An aggrieved party with legal standing may appeal a final decision of the Planning Board to the York County Superior Court in accordance with Maine Rules of Civil Procedures Section 80B, within forty-five (45) days from the date the decision by the Planning Board was rendered.

662663

664

665

#### ITEM 4 – Board Member Items/Discussion

A. Kittery Climate Adaptation Committee Representation

Mr. Ledgett volunteered to serve as the Planning Board representative.

666 667

#### **ITEM 9 - Town Planner Items**

669 None

670

668

#### **Adjournment**

671 672 673

- Mr. Alesse moved to adjourn the meeting.
- 674 Mr. Ledgett seconded the motion.

675 676

The motion carried 6-0-0.

677

The Kittery Planning Board meeting of March 14, 2019 adjourned at 8:21 p.m.

679

Submitted by Jamie Steffen, Town Planner, on May 8, 2019.

681

- Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author's understanding of the meeting.
- Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the
- 684 minutes are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a
- summary of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please
- refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website at
- 687 http://www.townhallstreams.com/locations/kittery-maine.